
 1 

MINUTES OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2006 
              

               
PRESENT: Walter L. Alcorn, Commissioner At-Large  

John R. Byers, Mount Vernon District 
Frank A. de la Fe, Hunter Mill District 

 Nancy Hopkins, Dranesville District  
 Ronald W. Koch, Sully District 

Kenneth A. Lawrence, Providence District 
Rodney L. Lusk, Lee District 

 Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District 
  Laurie Frost Wilson, Commissioner At-Large 
 
ABSENT: Janet R. Hall, Mason District  

Suzanne F. Harsel, Braddock District 
 James R. Hart, Commissioner At-Large 
   
// 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:17 p.m. by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, Jr., in the Board 
Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center at 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
// 
 
COMMISSION MATTERS 
 
Commissioner Alcorn noted that the Transit-Oriented Development Committee had met on 
Wednesday, November 1, 2006, to draft transit-oriented development guiding principles for 
inclusion in the Comprehensive Plan.  He announced that the Committee would meet again on 
Wednesday, November 15, 2006, at 7:00 p.m. in Conference Rooms 2/3 in the Government Center.  
Commissioner Alcorn requested that comments on the revised draft strawman guidelines, which 
were posted on the Committee’s Web site, be submitted by the close of business on Tuesday, 
November 7, 2006.  He added that an updated draft would be developed by the end of next week.  
He said everyone was invited and encouraged to participate in the process. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Lawrence MOVED THAT THE DECISION ONLY ON RZ 2004-PR-044 AND  
FDP 2004-PR-044, TYSONS CORNER HOLDINGS LLC AND TYSONS CORNER 
PROPERTY HOLDINGS LLC (TYSONS CORNER CENTER), BE FURTHER DEFERRED 
TO A DATE CERTAIN OF DECEMBER 7, 2006, WITH THE RECORD REMAINING OPEN 
FOR WRITTEN COMMENT. 
 
 
 



 2 

COMMISSION MATTERS                                                                                November 2, 2006 
 
 
Commissioners Alcorn and Lusk seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Hart absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
On behalf of Commissioner Hall, Chairman Murphy MOVED THAT THE PUBLIC HEARING 
ON SE 2006-MA-016, PNC BANK, NA, BE DEFERRED TO A DATE CERTAIN OF 
NOVEMBER 15, 2006. 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall, 
Harsel, and Hart absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Alcorn announced that the Land Use Information Accessibility Advisory Group 
would hold its last meeting on Wednesday, November 8, 2006, at 7:15 p.m., in Conference Rooms 
9/10 in the Government Center, to finalize its recommendations to forward to the Board of 
Supervisors.  He said everyone who was interested was encouraged to attend the meeting. 
 
// 
 
Chairman Murphy congratulated John Frey, Clerk of the Fairfax Circuit Court, on being named 
2006 Public Official of the Year by the National Association of County Recorders, Election 
Officials, and Clerks. 
 
// 
 
Chairman Murphy noted that the Planning Commission would not meet on Wednesday, 
November 8, 2006, and would reconvene on Thursday, November 9, 2006. 
 
// 
 
SE 2006-LE-012 - PNC BANK, NA (Decision Only) 
(The public hearing on this application was held on October 26, 2006.  A complete verbatim 
transcript of the decision made is included in the date file.) 
 
Commissioner Lusk MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF SE 2006-LE-012, SUBJECT TO THE 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED OCTOBER 27, 2006. 
 
Commissioners Alcorn, Byers, and Lawrence seconded the motion which carried unanimously 
with Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Hart absent from the meeting. 
 
 
 



 3 

COMMISSION MATTERS                                                                                November 2, 2006 
 
 
Commissioner Lusk MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE WAIVER OF THE LOADING 
SPACE REQUIREMENT. 
 
Commissioner Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall, 
Harsel, and Hart absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Lusk MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE 20 PERCENT PARKING SPACE 
REDUCTION REQUEST. 
 
Commissioners Byers and Lawrence seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Hart absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
FS-Y06-69 - APC REALTY & EQUIPMENT COMPANY, LLC/SPRINT, 14280 Park Meadow 
Drive 
 
Commissioner Koch MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION CONCUR WITH THE 
DETERMINATION THAT FS-Y06-69 IS SUBSTANTIALLY IN ACCORD WITH THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE ADOPTED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AND SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED A “FEATURE SHOWN” PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE SECTION 15.2-
2232, AS AMENDED. 
 
Commissioners Wilson and Byers seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Hall, Harsel, and Hart absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 
In the absence of Secretary Harsel, Chairman Murphy noted that there was only one case on the 
agenda: 
 

1. RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 

 
This order was accepted without objection. 
 
// 
 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC 
- Appls. to rezone from R-1 and I-4 to PRM to permit mixed use 
development with an overall Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 1.37 and  



 4 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC            November 2, 2006 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 
 
 

approval of the conceptual and final development plans.  Located in 
the N.E. quadrant of the intersection of Prosperity Ave. and Gallows 
Rd. on approx. 14.06 ac. of land.  Comp. Plan Rec:  Mixed Use up to 
2.25 FAR.  Tax Map 49-1 ((1)) 27A; 49-2 ((1)) 13A and 15A.  
PROVIDENCE DISTRICT.   
 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC - 
Appls. to amend the  proffers and final development plan for RZ 88-P-
030 previously approved for mixed use development at a density of 
1.25 dwelling units per acre (du/ac) to permit site modifications and 
associated proffer changes.  Located on the N. side of Prosperity Ave. 
approx. 1,200 ft. W. of its intersection with Gallows Rd. on approx. 
1.32 ac. of land zoned PDC.  Comp. Plan Rec:  Mixed Use.  Tax Map 
49-1 ((13)) 17A and 18A.  PROVIDENCE DISTRICT.  JOINT 
PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Mark Looney, Esquire, with Cooley Godward Kronish LLP, reaffirmed the affidavit dated 
October 18, 2006.  There were no disclosures by Commission members. 
 
Jonathan Papp, Zoning Evaluation Division (ZED), Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ), 
presented the staff report, a copy of which is in the date file.  He noted that staff recommended 
approval of the applications. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Lawrence, Mr. Papp agreed that the proposed 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program would not replace the need for any road 
improvements.  He explained that the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority 
(WMATA) had expressed concern about the sustainability of landscaping required to be located 
on top of the parking structure and consequently requested a waiver of interior parking lot 
landscaping. 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner de la Fe, Mr. Papp said staff still recommended 
denial of the requested waiver, but would work with WMATA to resolve this issue. 
 
Mr. Looney stated that as part of a joint development proposal with WMATA, the applicant 
sought to develop a mixed-use, transit-oriented development at the Dunn Loring Metro Station.  
He explained that the proposed development would consist of mid-rise, multi-family residential 
buildings with an option for one high-rise building, totaling 550 to 720 units, and approximately 
125,000 square feet of ground-floor retail space.  He described traffic circulation and access 
points and said a covered walkway to the station platform would be provided.  Mr. Looney stated 
that the two additional bus bays would allow buses to load and unload more passengers and 
improve the operations of the bus system throughout the area.  He noted that the proposed kiss-
and-ride area would be separated from the bus bay area.  He indicated that the applicant had 
proffered to permit the Fairfax County Police Department to occupy ground-floor space for use 
as a satellite police office.  Mr. Looney explained that parking for the residential and retail uses  



 5 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC            November 2, 2006 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 
 
 
would be provided at-grade level with three below-grade levels of structured parking for the 
residential buildings.  He noted that the applicant had proffered to develop a parking 
management plan to properly direct Metro users, residents, and retail patrons to the appropriate 
parking facilities.  He stated that the proposal would provide three interior courtyard areas within 
the residential buildings with benches, cookout facilities, landscaping, and passive recreation 
areas which would also serve as stormwater management and Low Impact Development (LID) 
features for the property.  Mr. Looney said it was possible that a grocery store would locate in 
the larger retail space and that amenities such as fitness facilities, a business center, and a media 
center would be provided for residents.  He explained that the applicant had proffered eight 
percent of the units to be either affordable dwelling units (ADU) or workforce housing, 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.  He said the 
applicant had proffered the following transportation improvements:  extensions of Gallows Road 
and Prosperity Avenue; addition of turn lanes from Gallows Road and Prosperity Avenue onto 
the proposed Main Street; extension of Merrilee Drive across Prosperity Avenue into the 
property and connecting to Gallows Road; pedestrian countdown signals; a five-foot bicycle lane 
along Gallows Road; and provision of various streetscape improvements.  Mr. Looney stated that 
the applicant had also proffered to provide pedestrian pathways, sidewalks and bicycle racks.  He 
explained that the shuttle service currently being provided would be analyzed with the possibility 
of replacing or consolidating it with a Merrifield shuttle.  He stated that the applicant had 
committed to an aggressive TDM plan and would face penalties if goals were not achieved.  He 
noted that the TDM plan would be monitored through annual surveys, reports, and trip counts 
and the applicant would be relieved of the responsibility for ongoing implementation of the TDM 
plan once the 50 percent trip reduction target had been maintained for two consecutive years 
following the construction of the bulk of the ground-floor retail.  Mr. Looney noted that the 
applicant had proffered a tree save plan; a $25,000 contribution to the Vienna Baseball 
Foundation; the standard public school contribution; $300,000 for parks and athletic facilities in 
the Merrifield area; and $25,000 toward the reconstruction of an existing offsite pedestrian 
bridge linking the Dunn Loring Village community with Prosperity Avenue.  He said during 
construction at least 1,355 parking spaces would be available to Metro users and shuttle service 
would be provided as necessary. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Alcorn, Mr. Looney said the proposed design 
balanced the vehicular and pedestrian circulation improvements.  He noted that Sheet 20A of 34 
was for illustrative purposes only and was not reflective of the final engineering and design of 
the street layout.  He pointed out that the proposal would accommodate the needs of the 
pedestrians accessing the site.  Mr. Looney explained that any development within the public 
right-of-way had to be built in accordance with the Virginia Department of Transportation 
(VDOT) standards; however, the design standards for private streets were more flexible. 
Commissioner Alcorn said he believed that VDOT would be more flexible regarding specific 
design issues.  He commented that the proposed street designs geared toward increasing travel 
speeds would hinder pedestrian safety.  He recommended that the design be improved to ensure 
that the development would be walkable and pedestrian-friendly.  Mr. Looney concurred with 
this recommendation. 
 



 6 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC            November 2, 2006 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 
 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Wilson, Angela Rodeheaver, Fairfax County 
Department of Transportation, said she would compare the size of the Dunn Loring-Merrifield 
Metro station to the Franconia-Springfield Metro station in terms of ridership and parking. 
 
Commissioner Wilson commented that the proposed kiss-and-ride area would lead to traffic 
congestion due to the absence of dedicated turn lanes, the two-lane wide entrance, and proximity 
to the Gallows Road intersection.  She suggested that the applicant compare the proposed design 
and layout of the kiss-and-ride area to that of other Metro stations to determine whether its 
capacity would be sufficient.  Mr. Looney agreed with this suggestion and said he believed that 
the number of riders would be substantially different from other Metro stations because this 
station was not a terminus.   
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wilson, Mr. Looney indicated that turn lanes would 
be provided onto the proposed main street from Gallows Road, which would help accommodate 
traffic congestion.  He explained that the applicant had proffered to post signage to restrict 
parking along the main street during peak hours to enable additional kiss-and-ride or other 
loading or unloading activities within the street parking area, which would help provide relief for 
vehicles that were unable to access the kiss-and-ride area.   
 
Commissioner Byers commended the applicant for proffering to install pedestrian countdown 
signals at every pedestrian crossing within the vicinity of the proposed development.  He 
commented that a grocery store would be critical to achieving the 50 percent trip reduction goal, 
noting that people did not normally walk or ride the Metro to a grocery store unless it was at an 
accessible location.   
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Byers, Mr. Looney explained that the applicant 
had proffered to contribute $25,000 to the party held responsible for the reconstruction of the 
pedestrian bridge across an existing easement located on a commercial property between the 
subject property and the Dunn Loring Village common area. 
 
Chairman Murphy called the first listed speaker and recited the rules for public testimony. 
 
Tim Reed, 202 Talahi Road, Vienna, commented that Fairfax County had not acted responsibly 
with its growth and transportation policies and should consider more and better peak hour traffic 
metrics.  He said that the Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors must make a 
commitment to anti-sprawl in order to support the transit-oriented development promises made 
to the public. 
 
Patrick Daily, 8183 Carnegie Hall Court, Unit 407, Vienna, President of Westbriar 
Condominium Association, noted that the applicant had met with the association and had 
incorporated many of its suggestions in the proposal.  He said he supported the proposal, 
especially the proposed grocery store, retail, restaurants, and bar at the site.  He recommended 
that improvements be made to the surrounding infrastructure prior to the construction of the 
proposed development to address the additional traffic.  Mr. Daily expressed concern about  



 7 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC            November 2, 2006 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 
 
 
whether the existing infrastructure and safety measures would be able to handle the increased 
number of high-density residential developments in the area.  He further expressed concern about 
pedestrian safety in the area, citing the need for sufficient lighting along Gallows Road.  He 
suggested that the County ensure that bonds would adequately cover the proposed improvements 
or prevent them from being released too quickly.   
 
Trevor Campbell, Associate with West, Lane & Schlager and Chair of the Revitalization 
Committee of the Greater Merrifield Business Association, expressed support for the proposed 
development because it would help advance the redevelopment efforts and vibrancy of the area.  
He said a grocery store would greatly benefit the area.   
 
Stephen Fox, Esquire, 10511 Judicial Drive, Suite 112, Fairfax, representing the Dunn Loring 
Village Homeowners Association, stated that the Dunn Loring Village community residents 
commonly used the pathway through the Prosperity Business Campus property to access the 
subject property, but had stopped recently due to the posting of “no trespassing” signs 
threatening prosecution.  He requested that the Planning Commission recommend to the Board of 
Supervisors that it complete the public pedestrian easement on the commercial property to 
connect to the pedestrian bridge.  Mr. Fox distributed a memorandum dated November 2, 2006, a 
copy of which is in the date file.  He said that Proffer Number 30 failed to address citizens’ 
concerns.   
 
Robert Mortensen, 6843 Churchill Road, Fairfax, Chair of the Merrifield Plan Task Force, spoke 
in support of the proposal because it conformed to the Comprehensive Plan language for the 
Merrifield Suburban Center that the task force had envisioned for the site and would provide 
needed pedestrian access, enhance the character of the area, improve Gallows Road, and increase 
the use of Metro.  (A copy of his remarks is in the date file.) 
 
G. Ray Worley, 2537 Gallows Road, Dunn Loring, President of the Dunn Loring Improvement 
Association, voiced his objection to the proposal due to increased traffic, inadequate parking for 
the kiss-and-ride area, absence of a study of the effectiveness of a TDM plan, insufficient funds 
to implement the TDM plan, and lack of compliance by the applicant to provide a copy of the 
transportation study as requested.  He said the proffered Applicant Control Period of two years 
would not sufficiently test the durability of the proposed TDM plan.  Mr. Worley said he 
opposed the proposal that implementation of the TDM plan would be assigned to the residents 
following the period’s expiration.  He indicated that the applicant had not committed to 
contribute any funds to the adjacent Stenwood Elementary School, which would be significantly 
impacted by the proposal.   
 
Michael Scheurer, President of AHOME, 111 Packard Center, 4022 Hummer Road, Annandale, 
said he recognized the efforts made by the applicant, but could not support the proposal because 
it was not in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, which required that 12 percent of the 
base number of approved units be available for households with incomes up to 120 percent of the 
area median income.  
 



 8 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC            November 2, 2006 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 
 
 
Rebecca Cate, 8119 Westchester Drive, Vienna, Chair of the Dunn Loring Gardens Civic 
Association Board of Directors and Chair of the Providence District Council Land Use 
Committee, noted that the applicant had agreed to incorporate changes in the proposal as 
requested by the Providence District Council and the Trails Committee.  She stated that the 
applicant had worked with the community to redesign the proposal, especially the kiss-and-ride 
area, and the addition of a plaza near the entrance to the Metro station, which would serve 
handicapped residents.  Ms. Cate spoke in favor of the proposed development because the 
applicant had been extremely responsive to the concerns expressed by the community and staff.  
She recommended that the Board of Supervisors secure the pedestrian and bicycle easement 
through the Prosperity Business Campus property, which should have been completed 25 years 
ago.  She further recommended that the County enforce the proposed proffers and ensure that the 
TDM goals were met to prevent traffic from negatively impacting the area and discouraging 
people from using its community services.  Ms. Cate expressed concern that the proposed 
widening of Gallows Road and Prosperity Avenue would divide the community, encourage 
speeding, and fail to protect pedestrians.  She suggested that the Commission tighten the plans 
and proffers to ensure that the promises made by the applicant would be incorporated in the final 
approved design. 
 
Gerald Hopkins, 10317 Lynnhaven Place, Oakton, said the proposed percentage of affordable 
housing failed to meet the first objective in the Housing Section of the Comprehensive Plan, 
which required that the supply of ADUs be increased each year by an amount that was not less 
than 12 percent of the total housing production of the County for the previous year.  He 
requested that the Commission determine an appropriate affordable housing requirement.   
 
Andrew Neff, 8577 Dellway Lane, Vienna, suggested that the easement across the Prosperity 
Business Campus property be legally established to maintain its short distance to the subject 
property, benefit the Dunn Loring Village community, and effectively address broader access to 
public transportation for the existing residents.  He further suggested that the applicant install 
lighting and a crosswalk across the street on Prosperity Avenue.  He said the proposed 
development was not very pedestrian-friendly and would exacerbate existing traffic congestion 
in the area.   
 
John Eltzroth,  8100 Ravatom Court,  Dunn Loring, said the walk from his home to the subject 
property was fairly treacherous, partly because he had to cross Gallows Road.  He recommended 
that the proposal provide streetlights along Gallows Road adjacent to the Metro station.  He 
commended the applicant for the proffered contribution toward the Vienna Little League and 
suggested that all proffered funds remain in the community for schools, recreation, 
transportation, and lighting.   
 
Fran Wallingford, 3311 Mantua Drive, Fairfax, representing the Pine Ridge Civic Association, 
indicated that the applicant had not provided her with additional information regarding the 
proposed stormwater management, as requested.  She said the stormwater management plan 
needed further revision and clarification.  She expressed concern that the water runoff onto Long 
Branch Stream Valley and across Prosperity Avenue would cause significant flooding.  Ms.  



 9 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC            November 2, 2006 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 
 
 
Wallingford questioned how the peak runoff from the site would be reduced by 25 percent.  She 
pointed out that according to the staff report, there were no downstream problems on record.  She 
thanked the applicant for meeting with the community and for an open dialogue. 
 
Terry Dunn, 8551 Dellway Lane, Vienna, said he agreed with Mr. Fox’s and Ms. Wallingford’s 
remarks.  He recommended that the easement through the Prosperity Business Campus property 
be established and the “no trespassing” sign and plastic debris barrier fences be removed in order 
to improve the pedestrian access.  He further recommended that the County enforce the 
protection of pedestrians during the construction process. 
 
There being no more speakers, Chairman Murphy called for a rebuttal statement from Mr. 
Looney. 
 
Mr. Looney noted that Shrevewood Elementary School, Kilmer Middle School, and Marshall 
High School would serve the subject property.  He said the number of students expected to be 
generated by the proposed development was relatively minimal.  He stated that the WMATA 
facilities would be the single largest generator of vehicle trips in the area.  He explained that the 
objective of the TDM plan was to ensure that 50 percent of the residents would commute by 
other than a vehicle during the weekday peak hours for two consecutive years and if this 
objective was not achieved, the applicant would have to pay a significant amount into the TDM 
Penalty Fund.  Mr. Looney indicated that the proposal would provide an alternative access point 
at Merrilee Drive and Prosperity Avenue through the proposed Main Street to accommodate the 
kiss-and-ride area.  He stated that the applicant would implement a lighting program in 
conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and provided adequate illumination to ensure safety for 
the entire development.  He said the applicant had met with Ms. Wallingford and would provide 
her with more information.  He explained that two drainage channels would run from the 
property and the proposed net reduction of 25 percent of the discharge rate would not exacerbate 
existing conditions within Long Branch Stream Valley.  Mr. Looney said the proposed 
percentage of ADUs and workforce housing units exceeded the Zoning Ordinance requirements 
and represented a substantial commitment to implement the Merrifield Comprehensive Plan 
recommendations.   
 
Chairman Murphy pointed out that he had not seen any guidance from the Board of Supervisors 
as to how the County should be tabulating workforce housing in a clear and precise way.  
Barbara Byron, ZED, DPZ, replied that the Board of Supervisors had established the High-rise 
Affordability Panel to provide policy recommendations and implementation strategies, which the 
Board had sent to staff for review.  She stated that staff had been working to achieve 
commitments from applicants outside of the Board directive to obtain additional workforce 
housing units.  She noted that the proffered commitment was consistent with other large zoning 
cases that had gone before the Planning Commission in the last six months.   
 
Chairman Murphy commented that the proffered amount of ADUs and workforce housing more 
than adequately addressed the need for affordable housing. 
 



 10 

RZ 2005-PR-039/FDP 2005-PR-039 - DUNN LORING METRO LLC            November 2, 2006 
PCA 88-P-030/FDPA 88-P-030 - DUNN LORING METRO, LLC 
 
 
Commissioner Alcorn said he would like to discuss the specifics of the ADU/Workforce 
Housing proffer with the applicant.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Alcorn, Ms. Byron stated that last January, the 
Board of Supervisors had reaffirmed the policy in the Comprehensive Plan for 12 percent of 
housing to be workforce units.  She explained that the applicant had committed to provide 
workforce housing units that would serve people making up to 80 percent of the median 
household income, which was at the lower end of the defined income range of 70 percent to 120 
percent of the median household income, in order to make the units more affordable to more 
people.   
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Wilson, Mr. Looney indicated that the applicant 
had submitted a traffic study addendum to staff a few months ago that addressed the additional 
trips that would be generated from the increased number of parking spaces for the Metro facility 
and the retail space.  Commissioner Wilson requested that the applicant confirm that the 
Providence District Council had received all updated information.  Mr. Looney concurred with 
this request. 
 
In response to another question from Commissioner Wilson, Ms. Byron explained that the 
proposed floor area ratio (FAR) was 1.37 for the entire 14.06-acre rezoning area and the 
proposed FAR was 2.25 for the 8.0 acres south of the proposed main street, including the parking 
garage, WMATA facilities, and the Proffered Condition Amendment area.  She said that the 
proposed FAR had been incorrectly depicted on the cover sheet of the staff report. 
 
There were no further comments or questions from the Commission and staff had no closing 
remarks; therefore, Chairman Murphy closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner 
Lawrence for action on this case.  (A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Lawrence MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER THE 
DECISION ONLY ON RZ/FDP 2005-PR-039 AND PCA/FDPA 88-P-030, TO A DATE 
CERTAIN OF NOVEMBER 15, 2006, WITH THE RECORD TO REMAIN OPEN FOR 
WRITTEN COMMENT. 
 
Commissioner Lusk seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall, 
Harsel, and Hart absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:48 p.m. 
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Chairman 
Suzanne F. Harsel, Secretary 
 



 11 

CLOSING                                                                                                            November 2, 2006 
 
 
Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

 
 
Minutes by:  Kara A. DeArrastia 
 
Approved on:  July 24, 2008   

 
 
 

       
Linda B. Rodeffer, Clerk to the 
Fairfax County Planning Commission 

 
 


